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The Polk County Courthouse is a T-shaped brick building, in 
the Greek Revival style~ The main (west) facade is dominated by 
an engaged, three-bay portico with a plain pediment supported by four 
square pillars. The large sash windows have stone lintels 
and sillso Though no shutters remain, the driven rentils which supported 
them survive. The central entrance consists of double doors with six 
in each leaf. Flanking the doorway are paneled pilasters and three-light 
sidelights flanked in turn by engaged repeats of the pilastersQ Above the 
doors and sidelights is a large, reeded transom bar and a nine~light transo , 
which is flanked by truncated pilastersg Framing the entire entrance are 
large engaged pilasters with molded capitals supporting an unadorned enta­
blature. In the shallow north and south walls of the porch are six-panel 
doorso A wide, plain frieze carries around the building as does a molded 
brick watertable. Each corner of the building is defined by a brick 
pilaster with molded brick capital. A three-stage cupola sits astride the 
north-south roof ridge of the main facade block. The first stage, square 
in section, resting on an unadorned base, has an even row of quoins at each 
corner and is protected by a small hip roof o The next stage is shallow and 
has only corner posts for adornmentQ The third stage has a tall, round~ ~ 

headed, louvered ventilator ~n each face with a flat molded ba~d outlining 
each arch and linking the archeso The pyramidal roof is pedimented above 
the four faces of the cupola and is adorned with dent;ilso A pointed finial, 
bulbous at its base, completes the cupola~~b"-int'~rior end chimneys rise 
at both the north and south ends of the two-bay pedimented gable ends~ 

Extending east from the rear of the main facade block is the four-bay 
stem of the To Brick pilasters separate the bays of the north and south 
sides of this rear wing, but not the bays of the four-bay gable end at the 
rear (east) 0 This gable end is pedimented also. 

Entering the front door, there is a large entry hall with office space 
to the left and right with a center hall running to the rear of the building 
giving access to more office space Rising from the north and south sides 
of the front door are unusually handsome~ matching spiral stairs with 
moderately large turned newels, molded handrails and slender, rectangular 
balustersg The stair climbs gracefully to the second-floor stair hall which 
opens into the large courtroom area to the east and more office space to the 
north and southo The stair is continued, again in a matched pattern, in a 
straight run along the north and south walls, turning abruptly at the 
corners and rising to meet in the center where a door gives access to the 
upper sections This second-floor stair is rendered in Federal style with 
a square newel which is tapered toward the tope The handrail is rounded and 
is supported by slender balusterso Simple architraves are used throughout 
the building~ as are unadorned Greek Revival mantels which depend on pro­
portion rather than ornament for their effect$ In the courtroom~ which has 
been remodeled, the window architraves continue to the baseboard and frame 
a flat panel beneath the window~ Broad flat moldings predominate through­
out the buildingo 
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The Polk County Courthouse~ completed in 1859 by builders Ephraim 
Clayton and George Wo Shakelford, is the first and only pe~anent court~ 
house serving this western countyQ ,Praised by Thomas Waterman in The 
Early Architecture of NotthCat61ina, the courthouse is an imposing brick 
structure in dignified Greek Revival style, notable especially for its 
strong, simple classical detail and graceful double spiral stairo 

. '. . . 

Polk County was first created by the General Assembly in January~ 1847 
from portions of Rutherford and Henderson counties@ In this act the 
Assembly authorized a group of commissioners to nlay,of~, and locate the 
county seat" • at or within five miles, of/the·r~siden~e of Murrell 
/Marvill/ Mills vw The proposed co;nty seat was to be known as 
"Schuywfcker

u 
in honor of a courageous Cherokee Indian guide named USkyuka,. 

who is said to have assisted a group of white militiamen in l776@ In 
January~ 1849, bitter disagreement concerning the exact location o~ this 
county seat resulted in repeal of the 1847 act authorizing the establish­
ment of the countYg Po1k~s lands and records were thereupon returned to 
the respective custodies of Rutherford and Henderson counties" 

A law enacted by the General Assembly at its 1854-1855 session pro­
vided for the re-creation of Polk County and ordered that John Ro Logan of 
Cleveland County, Joseph Ervin of Burke County, and Benjamin Burgin of 
McDowell County be appointed commissioners Uta layoff and locate the county 
seat of Polk County Q • " upon which a town shall be laid off to be called 
Columbus, and on which the court house and public buildings shall be 
erectedu 9 0 g'V The law further provided that proceeds from the sale of 
town lots be used to finance construction of the new county's public 
buildings 0 

In December~ 1855, the Polk County Court of Pleas and Quarter Sessions 
ordered William So Mills, newly-elected treasurer of public buildings, to 
"Contract with some suitable person for the Building of a Temporary Court 
ouse at Columbus Q ~ Q until a Permanent Court House can be Built" H 

E. L. Foster was chosen to construct the temporary facility, which was 
tilized at least as early as March 3, 1856. Foster was paid $190.87 for 
is efforts, which apparently included construction of a temporary jail 
he court also ordered that a committee be created to assist Mills in 
ntering into a contract with a low bidder for the of a permane t 
ourthouse and jail and for the enclosure of a 
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Successful bidders on these projects were Ephraim Clayton and George WQ 
Shake1ford, both of Buncombe County. Clayton, son of Revolutionary soldier 
Lambert Clayton, is said to have been born in present-day Transylvania County 
in 1804 and to have spent most of his early life in the Asheville area. He 
became a building contractor at an early age and was the builder of the fourth 
Buncombe County Courthouse at Asheville, which he completed in 1850. This 
structure, like its counterpart at Columbus, included a cupola; unfortunately, 
it was completely destroyed by fire on January 28, 1865 In addition 9 Clayton 
was hired to enlarge and remodel ;St. Johnvs in the Wilderness, an early 
Episcopal church located at Flat Rock in Henderson CountYG He designed the 
fence to enclose the proposed public square and probably designed the court­
house itselfo After the Civil War he departed the construction trade and 
entered the field of railroad contractinge He is said to have suffered a 
severe loss when the Spartanburg and Asheville Railroad Company failed without 
satisfying its creditorse 

Of Gc W. Shakelford much less is knownQ He was born in Tennessee in 1818 
and apparently settled in Buncombe County sometime before l850@ He spent a 
number of years in the Asheville area as a brickmason and died intestate and 
penniless in March, 1883. It is uncertain whether he practiced this trade 
throughout his entire lifetime. 

At its March, 1857, term, the Polk County Court received word from 
William S. Mills that the courthouse had been commissioned and 'Was "progressin 
verry well V9 in spite of a bitter winter which had delayed the original com- ' 
pletion date of the new jailQ Mills alsoadvised_that-Shakelford had been 
paid $4,999.13 on his contract@ One year later Mills reported to the court 
that Clayton and Shakelford had been paid a total of $10,591.93 on their total 
contract price Ei $16,836, for "BuildinE.. C_H & jail and for enclosing the 
public square ~/ for building Cupalo Lani/ furnishing a bell for the Court 
Houseo 0 " Q 10 

Clayton and Shakelford apparently completed their work by September, 1859, 
when a grand jury reported to the court that the new public buildings were 
"in good order VI The building survives today in essentially its original 
state and continues to function as the county courthouseu 
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As the des ignated State Liaison Officer for the Na­

tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 

89-(65), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion 
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forth by the National Park Service. The recommended 
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